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February 25, 2022 
 
Margaret Martini 
761 Northwood Blvd. 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
margaretmartini@liveintahoe.com 
 
 
Dear Ms. Martini, 
 
 
Thank you for your request for public records.  In your request you asked for data to determine 
exactly what the Incline Village/Crystal Bay area costs the County on a yearly basis as opposed to what 
revenue is taken in from all taxes and revenue sources from the Incline Village/Crystal Bay area.   
 
This communication is in response to your request and includes the public records you requested to the 
extent that they exist.  The “exact” data you are requesting exists in some limited cases, such as the 
amount of property taxes billed by entity and within the Incline Village/Crystal Bay area.  We have 
provided those records.  Much of the data requested regarding other revenues and costs does not exist in 
an exact record format but in a less discreet form as part of a larger source of data.    To the extent the 
data being requested does not exist in an exact record, as a courtesy, we offer information by way of this 
letter, which may be helpful to understand the nature of the data.  The following section outlines both the 
public records we were able to provide, as well as the other data we have provided. 
 
REVENUE: 
 
The County’s largest sources of revenue are property taxes and consolidated taxes, making up 84% of total 
General Fund budgeted revenue in fiscal year 2022.   

 

 Property Taxes  

Property taxes are billed based on assessed valuation of properties and tax rates (see also Document 
#2 Total Property Tax Rates – FY 2021‐2022 by Taxing Unit, from the State of Nevada Department of 
Taxation).  Washoe County’s assessed valuation for fiscal year 2022 totaled $20,544,723,233.  Of that 
total, the assessed value attributable to Incline Village/Crystal Bay is $1,902,692,124, or 9%, as 
reflected by the assessed value for the No. Lake Tahoe Fire Taxing Unit, which includes all the Incline 
Village/Crystal Bay parcels. 
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Property taxes levied in Incline Village/Crystal Bay by all taxing entities for the current fiscal year, 2022, 
total $57,239,405 (see also Document #1 Property Taxes Billed, from the Washoe County Treasurer’s 
Office). Of that amount, Washoe County’s portion totals $23,259,512, or 41%.  The balance goes to the 
other taxing entities, Washoe County School District, North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District 
(NLTFPD), Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) and the State of Nevada.   

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Washoe County, not including the other taxing entities, levied a total of $245,096,809 in property taxes 
countywide in the current fiscal year 2022.  Of that total, $23,259,512, or 9%  represents the amount 
levied in Incline/Village/Crystal Bay.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Consolidated Taxes  

Consolidated taxes (C‐Tax) are made up of sales and excise taxes (largest portion), real property 
transfer taxes, and other taxes, collected by the State of Nevada and distributed on a formula basis to 
the County and other entities.  The formula is determined by the State.  The State does not collect or 
provide point of sale data by location within each County for sales taxes and the other taxes included 
in the consolidated tax.  In this case there is no exact record that can be provided to account for 
consolidated tax attributable to Incline Village/Crystal Bay.  There is also no reasonable basis of 
estimation.   

Entity Property Tax

IVGID 1,899,442               3%

NLTFPD 10,211,459             18%

State of Nevada 2,841,213               5%

Washoe County 23,259,512             41%

WCSD 19,027,779             33%

Total 57,239,405$           100%

Property Tax Billed by Entity FY 2022
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Total C‐Tax tax collections are remitted to the State of Nevada Department of Taxation.  Certain C‐Tax 
components are “taken off the top” prior to county distributions.  Therefore, Washoe County does not 
receive 100% of C‐Tax distributions.  Local School Support Tax (LSST) and a 1.75% State Collection Fee 
are taken “off the top”.  The remaining amount is distributed directly to various entities within Washoe 
County.  Washoe County receives approximately 51% of the remaining distribution. 

 

While we cannot provide an exact record for this revenue source, the following link to the Nevada 
Department of Taxation’s website provides data for consolidated taxes statewide  by county, and by 
industry type within each county:  https://tax.nv.gov/Publications/Taxation_Revenue_Statistics/ 

 
EXPENSES: 

The County’s financial accounting and budgeting system structure and policies follow federal and state 
accounting and financial reporting standards as required by Nevada Revised Statutes, Nevada 
Administrative Code, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Governmental Accounting Standards, 
and Washoe County policy.  This structure neither  accounts for nor budgets costs by geographic area 
within the County, but instead, identifies by function, fund type and department.  Washoe County’s 
Revenue Policy 1.6 specifically states that the County shall avoid targeting revenues for specific programs 
unless legally required or when the revenue source has been established for the sole purpose of financing 
a specified program or project. 

 
The County provides a wide range of services to citizens.  Some services are distinct departments that 
operate in Incline Village/Crystal Bay only, such as the Incline Constable and Incline Village Justice Court, 
and we have provided a link to the FY 2022 Budget Book (see pages 126‐127 for Incline Constable and 
pages 130‐131 for Incline Justice Court). FY22 Budget Book (washoecounty.gov); 
https://www.washoecounty.gov/budget/library_of_budgets/files/FY22%20BudgetBook 
 
 
The majority, however, are services that are available to all County residents permanent and transient (i.e., 
tourists, construction, etc.) such as Senior Services, Animal Services, Libraries, Child Protection, Law 
Enforcement, Emergency Management and Health Services, for example, are regional in nature.  These 
services are considered public goods, and available non‐exclusively to all residents and visitors.  These 
services are budgeted by department and are not broken out by geographic location of the service. 
 
 
Many departments provide these types of regional or public goods services county‐wide; however, we do 
not have records that track these services by specific location.  These public goods services are available to 
everyone, and are not separately billed transactions, in contrast to private sector goods and services.   
Estimating these costs by geographic area poses a challenge in that the services can be quite variable by 
location and from year to year.  For example, the County may incur significant costs in response to a 
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natural disaster, like a flood, earthquake, or mass casualty accident, in a specific geographical area in one 
year and may not incur those types of costs for a long time, if ever in the same area.  Yet, emergency 
management services and public safety services are available to all citizens, if needed, whether used or 
not.  

 

 Allocation Methodology for Estimating Costs 
 
Since these regional/public good type costs cannot be measured by exact location, the County 
prepared a cost per parcel methodology to estimate the amount per parcel.  This methodology does 
not provide an “exact” cost, rather it provides an approximation of average cost per parcel, like a cost 
per household, and can be measured within a specific taxing unit area.  For the current fiscal year 
2022, Washoe County billed property taxes to a total of 184,808 parcels countywide.  Of that total, 
Incline Village/Crystal Bay parcels represent 9,391, or 5% of total parcels billed.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

This cost per parcel methodology was used to compare the total amount of property taxes billed in Incline 
Village/Crystal Bay for fiscal year 2022 to the County’s fiscal year 2022 Budget.  The following table shows 
property taxes billed of $23,259,512 by each portion of the County’s total tax rate of 1.3917.  This property 
tax revenue is then compared to the allocation of the County’s fiscal year 2022 Budget costs to the Incline 
Village/Crystal Bay parcels using the 5% of total parcels allocation methodology.    

 

Using this methodology, the budget allocation for Incline Village/Crystal Bay parcels totals $24,395,092.  
The amount of property tax revenue billed is therefore $1,135,580 less than the amount of the allocated 
cost.  As previously stated, property taxes and consolidated taxes make up 84% of all County revenue.  
While we do not have data on consolidated taxes or a reasonable method of allocation, we can assume 
that the difference in revenue billed vs. estimated costs is reduced by the amount of consolidated taxes 
received, which brings the tax revenue and costs into approximate alignment. 

Incline Village  All Other County  Total

9,391                        175,417                   184,808            

5% 95% 100%

Washoe County Parcels Billed Property Tax FY 2022




















